
 



 



Тематический план дисциплины «Иностранный язык»  

для специалистов среднего звена  

 

Общее количество часов – 78 часа на курс. 
№ п/п 

 

Наименование   тем 

 

Количество учебного 

времени при очной 

форме обучения 

Всего в том числе 

практических 

1 2 3 

I к    

1.  Английский алфавит. Звуки. Типы слогов. 2 2 

2.  Правила чтения гласных и согласных буквосочетаний. 2 2 

3.  Личные местоимения в именительном и объектном 

падежах. Глагол to be в Present Simple. Диалог 

“Встреча-прощание”  

2 2 

4.  Притяжательные и указательные местоимения. 

Диалог “Знакомство” 

2 2 

5.  Множественное число существительных. “About 

myself” 

2 2 

6.  Притяжательный падеж существительных. “My 

family” 

2 2 

7.  Артикль. Виды артиклей. “My daily life” 2 2 

8.  Употребление артиклей. “My college” 2 2 

9.  Оборот “there is/are”. “My flat/house” 2 2 

10.  Степени сравнения прилагательных. “Great Britain: 

geographical position” 

2 2 

11.  Особые случаи образования степеней сравнения 

прилагательных.“Great Britain: industry and agriculture” 

2 2 

12.  Количественные и порядковые числительные. “Great 

Britain: political system” 

2 2 

13.  Даты. Время. Дроби. “London” 2 2 

14.  Предлоги места. “Canada: geographical position” 2 2 

15.  Предлоги времени. “Canada: political system” 2 2 

16.  Предлоги направления “Ottawa- the capital of Canada” 2 2 

17.  Обязательная контрольная работа 2 2 

18.  Прием внеаудиторного чтения. 2 2 

19. Повторительно-обобщающий урок. 2 2 

  38 38 

II к    

1.  The Present Simple Tense.  

The USA: geographical position. 

2 2 

2.  The Past Simple Tense. 

The USA: industry and agriculture. 

2 2 

3.  The Future Simple Tense. 

The USA: political system. 

2 2 

4.  The Present Continuous Tense. 

Washington. 

2 2 

5.  The Past Continuous Tense. 

Australia: geographical position. 

2 2 



6.  The Future Continuous Tense. 

Australia: political system. 

2 2 

7.  The Present Perfect Tense.  

Interesting facts about Australia. 

2 2 

8.  The Past Perfect Tense.  

New Zealand: geographical position. 

2 2 

9.  The Future Perfect Tense. 

New Zealand: political system. 

2 2 

10.  The First Conditional Sentences.   

Interesting facts about New Zealand. 

2 2 

11.  The Second Conditional Sentences.  

Kazakhstan: geographical position. 

2 2 

12.  The Third Conditional Sentences. 

Kazakhstan: political system. 

2 2 

13.  The Present Passive Voice.  

The State Symbols of Kazakhstan. 

2 2 

14.  Modal Verbs. 

Astana – the capital of Kazakhstan. 

2 2 

15.  Infinitive.  

My native town. 

2 2 

16.  Gerund. 

Holidays in Kazakhstan. 

2 2 

17.  Participle I. Participle II. 

British and American Holidays. 

2 2 

18.  Обязательная контрольная работа 2 2 

19.  Прием внеаудиторного чтения. 2 2 

20.  Повторительно-обобщающий урок. 2 2 

  40 40 

 Всего 

по дисциплине 

78 78 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Раздел 1 

Вводно-коррективный курс (8 часов) 

 

Урок 1. Английский алфавит. Звуки. Типы слогов. 

В английском алфавите 26 букв: 20 согласных и 6 гласных.  

Aa 

Bb 

Cc 

Dd 

Ee 

Ff 

Gg 

Hh 

Ii 

Jj 

Kk 

Ll 

Mm 

Nn 

Oo 

Pp 

Qq 

Rr 

Ss 

Tt 

Uu 

Vv 

Ww 

Xx 

Yy 

Zz 

 

В английском языке различают 4 типа слога: 

1. Открытый слог заканчивается гласной. Гласные в открытом типе слога читаются 

как в алфавите. 

Examples: take, me, my, fine 

2. Закрытый слог заканчивается согласной. В этом типе слога гласные передают 

краткие звуки. 

Examples: cat, dog, bus, red 

3. Третий тип слога - это слог, в котором за гласной следует буква r (в конце слога) 

или r + согласная. В этом типе слога гласные передают долгие звуки. 

Examples: car, sport, her, bird 

4. Четвертый тип слога – это слог, в котором за гласной следует сочетание r + 

согласная. В этом слоге все гласные передают долгие звуки.    

 

Урок 2. Правила чтения гласных и согласных буквосочетаний. 

Гласные буквосочетания 

ai –  [ei] --- rain [rein] 

ay – [ei] --- play [plei] 

ei – [ei] --- vein [vein] 

ey – [ei] --- grey [grei] 

ea – [i:] --- tea [ti:] 

ee – [i:] --- tree [tri:] 

oo – [u] --- book [buk] 

ew – []ju:] --- new [nju:] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Согласные буквосочетания 

       [s] before e, i, y --- city [siti] 

C 

       [k] before other vowels --- cake [keik] 

       [dз] before e, i, y --- gym [dзim]  

G 

       [g] before other --- go [gou] 

ch – [t] --- cheese [ti:z] 

sh – [] --- shop [op] 

ck – [k] – clock [klok] 

kn – [n] – knife [naif] 

ph -  [f] – phone [foun] 

wh – [h] before o --- how [hau] 

wh – [w] – what [wot] 

th – [θ] --- thank [θәenk] 

th – [Ә] --- the [Әe] 



Урок 3. Личные местоимения в именительном и объектном падежах. Глагол to 

be в Present Simple. Диалог “Встреча-прощание” 

 

Личные местоимения в именительном и объектном падежах. Глагол to be в 

Present Simple 

 Личные местоимения изменяются по падежам: если они употребляются в 

предложении в качестве подлежащего, то они стоят в именительном падеже; если они 

употребляются в качестве дополнения, то они стоят в объектном падеже. 

 

Именительный падеж Объектный падеж 

I (я) Me (меня) 

You (ты) You (тебя) 

He (он) 

She (она) 

It (он, она, оно) 

Him (его) 

Her (её) 

It (его, её) 

We (мы) Us (нас) 

You (вы) You (вас) 

They (они) Them (их) 

 

Глагол “to be” в Present Simple 

+ ? - 

I am  

He is 

She is 

 It is  

We are  

You are 

They are 

Am I? 

Is he? 

Is she? 

Is it? 

Are we? 

Are you? 

Are they? 

I am not 

He is not 

She is not 

It is not 

We are not 

You are not 

They are not 

 

Диалог “Встреча-прощание” 

 

- Hello, Mike! Nice to see you! 

- Hello, Sam! How are you? 

- I’m fine, thanks. And how are you? 

- Thank you. Not too bad.  

- Let’s go somewhere together! 

- Ok! Call me in the evening  

-     So long. I wish you success! 

-     The same to you. Remember me to your sister. Good-bye! 

-     Bye-bye!!! 

 

 



Урок 4. Притяжательные и указательные местоимения. Диалог “Знакомство” 

 

Притяжательные и указательные местоимения 

 Притяжательные местоимения выражают принадлежность предмета. Существует 2 

формы притяжательных местоимений: относительная и абсолютная. 

Относительная форма 

My 

Your 

His 

Her 

Its 

Our 

Your 

Their 

Абсолютная форма 

Mine 

Yours 

His 

Hers 

Its 

Ours 

Yours 

Theirs 

 

My family is large. 

This is her car.  

 

Диалог “Знакомство” 

Diana: Hello, Arman! 

Arman: Hi, Diana! Nice to see you! How are you? 

Diana: I’m fine thanks. And you? 

Arman: Not too bed. Diana, this is Ruslan. 

Diana: Hello, Ruslan! Nice to meet you! 

Ruslan: Hello, Diana. Nice to meet you too. 

Diana: Where are you from? 

Ruslan: I’m from Astana. And where are you from? 

Diana: I’m from Semey… 

 

Раздел 2 

 About myself. Существительное. Артикль. (10 часов) 

 

Урок 5. Множественное число существительных. “About myself” 

Множественное число существительных. 

 Множественное число существительных образуется с помощью окончания "-s (-

es)", например: 

a book - books  книга - книги 

a table - tables  стол - столы 

a bridge - bridges  мост - мосты 

a boy - boys  мальчик – мальчики 

 

1. Если существительное оканчивается на –s, -ss, -ch, -sh, -x, -o, то добавляется 

окончание –es. 

a box – boxes 

a class – classes 

a glass – glasses 



2. Если существительное оканчивается на согласную букву + у, то y меняется на i и 

добавляется окончание – es.  

a party – parties 

a city – cities 

3. Если перед буквой у стоит гласная буква, то при образовании множественного 

числа у на i не меняется, а добавляется окончание –s. 

a boy – boys 

a day – days 

4. Если существительное оканчивается на – f/ -fe, то – f/ -fe меняется на –v и 

добавляется окончание –es. 

a wife – wives 

a wolf – wolves 

 

Слова-исключения. 

a man – men 

a woman – women 

a goose – geese 

a tooth – teeth 

a foot – feet 

a child – children 

an ox - oxen  

 

About myself 

My name is Ruslan. My surname is Iskakov. I was born on the fourth of February in 

1990. I am 18. I live in Semey. My address is 20, Karmenov Street, flat 25.  

  I have a family. My family is not very large. My mother’s name is Diana. My mother is a 

teacher. My father’s name is Rafael. My father is a businessman. I have a sister. Her name is 

Dilyara. She is a student.  

I am a student. I study at the Semey Geological Prospecting College. My favourite 

subject is English. I like reading. I like listening to music.  

I have many friends. I like sports very much. I play football, basketball and tennis.  

 

 

Урок 6. Притяжательный падеж существительных. “My family” 

 

 Притяжательный падеж существительных. 

 Существительные в английском языке имеют два падежа: общий падеж и 

родительный или притяжательный падеж. Притяжательный падеж существительных в 

единственном числе образуется путём прибавления апострофа и суффикса "-s" к 

существительным: 

My sister’s car – машина моей сестры 

Kanat’s pen – ручка Каната 

 

 Притяжательный падеж существительных во множественном числе образуется 

путём прибавления только апострофа. 

My parents’ house – дом моих родителей 



My family 

My name is Alex. I have a family. My family is not large. My family consists of four 

people: a father, a mother, a sister and me. 

 My father’s name is Oleg. He is 40. He is a doctor. He works at the hospital. My father 

likes football. We often go to football matches.  

My mother’s name is Irina.  She is 38. My mother is an accountant. She works in the 

bank. My mother likes cooking and playing tennis.  

I have a sister. Her name is Olga. She is 19. She is a student. She studies at the university. 

My sister likes swimming. 

Our grandparents don’t live with us. We visit them at weekends. 

Our family is very friendly. I love my family very much.  

 

 

Урок 7. Артикль. Виды артиклей. “My daily life” 

 

Артикль. Виды артиклей. 

 В английском языке существует два артикля: неопределенный a (an) и опре-

деленный the. 

Неопределенный артикль а(ап) произошел от числительного one — «один» и 

поэтому употребляется только с исчисляемыми существительными в единственном числе. 

Неопределенный артикль имеет две формы: 1) а, стоящую перед существи-

тельными, начинающимися с согласного звука, начинающееся с согласного звука, 

например: a book - книга, a big apple - большое яблоко; 2) an, стоящую перед 

существительными, начинающимися с гласного звука, например: an egg - яйцо, an old man 

- старик. 

Определенный артикль происходит от указательного местоимения that «тот» и 

имеет одну форму the, например: the room - (эта) комната, the big apple - (это) большое 

яблоко. 

Определенный артикль может употребляться как с исчисляемыми, так и с 

неисчисляемыми существительными в единственном и множественном числе. 

Определенный артикль употребляется, когда нужно выделить какой-либо предмет, 

лицо или явление из класса ему подобных, например: Give me the book. Дайте мне эту 

книгу (ту, которая лежит на столе). 

 

 

 My daily life 

I get up at 7 o’clock. I wash, clean my teeth and comb my hair. I have breakfast at twenty 

past seven. Usually I eat a sandwich and drink a coffee. Then I dress and go to college. Our 

lessons begin at quarter past eight. At quarter past eleven we have lunch. Our lessons finish at 

three o’clock.  

 I come home at five o’clock. I have dinner at seven. I usually eat soup and drink tea. 

Then I do my homework. When I have time I read a book, watch TV or talk to my parents. 

Sometimes I listen to music. I go to bed at 11 o’clock.  

 

 



Урок 8. Употребление артиклей. “My college” 

 

Употребление артиклей 

Употребление неопределенного артикля 

Неопределенный артикль употребляется: 

1. с существительным — именным членом составного сказуемого:  

Mike is a student. Миша студент 

2. с существительным-подлежащим  после оборота there is (there was, there will be):  

There's a good library in our school. В нашей школе есть хорошая библиотека. 

3. с дополнением после глагола have: 

I have a sister. У меня есть сестра. 

Определенный артикль обычно употребляется: 

a) когда перед существительными стоит порядковое числительное: 

the fourth of October 

b) когда перед существительными стоит прилагательное в превосходной степени: 

He is the best student in the group. 

с) с существительными, обозначающими предметы, единственные в своем роде: the 

sun, the moon, the earth, the ground, the world, the sky. 

d) перед названиями морей, океанов, рек, каналов, проливов, горных цепей, 

пустынь, групп островов: the Black Sea, the Atlantic Ocean, the Volga, the Thames, the 

English Channel, the Urals, the Sahara. 

e) перед названиями сторон света: the North, the South, the East, the West. 

 f) перед фамилиями во множественном числе для обозначения семьи в целом –    

    всех членов семьи: 

  the Petrovs  

 

 

My college 

 

The Semey Geological Prospecting College was established in 1931.  

There are several specialities at the college: geology, ecology, hydrology, drilling, 

geophysics, programming.  

The lessons begin at 8.15 and end at 3. The classrooms and laboratories at our college are 

large and light. Most of them have modern equipment. 

The library at the college has a lot of specialized geological books and magazines, 

different scientific editions and technical literature. There is a large reading-hall where we can do 

our homework.  

Our students are interested in basketball, football, volleyball, tourism, tennis, wrestling, 

etc. 

 There is a comfortable hostel where students from different parts of our country live. It is 

situated near the college.  

 

 

 

 

 



Урок 9. Оборот “there is/are”. “My flat/house” 

 

Оборот “there is/are” 

Оборот there is (there are) имеет значением «есть», «имеется», «находится». 

На русский язык предложения с оборотом there is (there are) рекомендуется 

переводить, начиная с обстоятельства места: 

 

There is a bus in the street.   На  улице (есть,  находится)  автобус. 

There is a book on the table.   На столе книга. 

There are two pens on the desk. На парте две ручки. 

  

В вопросительной форме глагол to be ставится перед вводным словом there: 

Is there a pencil in your bag?  В твоем портфеле есть карандаш? 

Are there any cars in the street? На улице стоят машины? 

 

Для образования отрицательной формы отрицание not ставится после оборота 

there is (there are): 

There isn’t a book on the table.  На столе нет книги. 

There aren’t any buses in the street. На улице нет автобусов. 

 

 

My flat/house 

I live in a flat. It is on the fourth floor. My flat is not very big. It is very comfortable. 

There are three rooms in it: a living-room, two bedrooms. We have also a kitchen, a bathroom, 

and a hall.  

Our living-room is big. There are two big windows in it. There is a sofa, two armchairs, 

and TV-set.  There is a brown carpet on the floor. 

My room is bedroom. There is a bed in it. There is a desk near the table. There is a 

computer on the table. There are two shelves on the wall. In the corner there is a wardrobe. 

Our kitchen is not very big. There is a table in the middle of the kitchen. There are four 

chairs around the table. There is a cupboard, a cooker, a fridge in the kitchen. 

We like our flat very much. We are happy to live here. 

 

 

Раздел 3 

Great Britain (8 часов) 

 

Урок 10. Степени сравнения прилагательных. “Great Britain: geographical position” 

 

Степени сравнения прилагательных. 

Односложные и двусложные прилагательные образуют степени сравнения путем 

прибавления суффиксов: -ег в сравнительной степени, -est в превосходной степени. 

Old – older – the oldest 

При образовании простых форм сравнительной и превосходной степеней необходимо 

соблюдать следующие правила: 



1) удваивать в написании конечную согласную в сравнительной и превосходной 

степенях односложных прилагательных, оканчивающихся на одну согласную с 

предшествующим кратким гласным звуком: 

hot – hotter – the hottest 

big – bigger – the biggest 

2) изменять букву у на i в сравнительной и превосходной степенях прилагательных, 

оканчивающихся на -у с предшествующей согласной: 

happy – happier – the happiest 

3) опускать немое e в сравнительной и превосходной степенях: 

large – larger – the largest  

simple  - simpler  - the simplest 

Прилагательные, состоящие более чем из двух слогов, образуют степени сравнения 

путем постановки перед ними слов more (в сравнительной степени) и most (в 

превосходной степени). 

interesting интересный - more interesting более интересный - most interesting самый 

интересный  

 

 

Great Britain: geographical position 

The United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland occupies a territory of the 

British Isles. Its total area is 244, 100 square km. The UK is situated off the north-western coast 

of Europe between the Atlantic Ocean and the North Sea.  

It consists of four main parts and every part has its national emblem: England – the red 

rose, Scotland – the thistle, Wales – the daffodil and the leek, Northern Ireland – the shamrock. 

Their capitals are London, Edinburgh, Cardiff and Belfast. 

There are many rivers in the UK: The Severn is the longest river, the Spey, the Thames, 

etc.  

The population of the UK is nearly 59 million people. The population lives mostly in 

towns and cities and their suburbs.  

The official language is English.  The UK is a constitutional monarchy. The head of the 

state is the Queen.  

The capital of Great Britain is London.  

 

 

Урок 11. Особые случаи образования степеней сравнения прилагательных.“Great 

Britain: industry and agriculture” 

 

Особые случаи образования степеней сравнения прилагательных 

Односложные и двусложные прилагательные образуют степени сравнения путем 

прибавления суффиксов: -ег в сравнительной степени, -est в превосходной степени. 

Прилагательные, состоящие более чем из двух слогов, образуют степени сравнения 

путем постановки перед ними слов more (в сравнительной степени) и most (в 

превосходной степени). 

Некоторые прилагательные образуют формы степеней сравнения от других корней: 

Good (хороший) – better – the best  

Bad (плохой) – worse – the worst  



Little (маленький) – less – the least  

Far (далекий) – further – the furthest 

         farther – the farthest 

 

Great Britain: industry and agriculture 

Great Britain is a highly developed industrial country. London is an important industrial 

centre. Clothes, food, planes and cars are made in London.  

Birmingham is the biggest industrial town. Machines, cars and lorries are made there. TV 

sets and radios are also produced in this town. 

Manchester is the centre of cotton textile industry, one of the most important producers of 

computers and electronic equipment. 

Coal is found in South Wales.  

Ship-building is an important industry in the United Kingdom. The main ship-building 

centres are London, Glasgow, Belfast and others. 

   

 

Урок 12. Количественные и порядковые числительные.  

“Great Britain: political system” 

 

Количественные и порядковые числительные 

В английском языке, как и в русском, числительные делятся на количественные и 

порядковые. 

 Количественные числительные обозначают число предметов и отвечают на вопрос: 

how many? (сколько?) 

I have two pens. 

 Порядковые числительные обозначают порядок при счете и отвечают на вопрос: 

which? 

Today is the seventh of May. 

 

Образование количественных и порядковых числительных. 

1 one  

2 two  

3 three  

4 four  

5 five  

6 six  

7 seven   

8 eight   

9 nine   

10 ten    

11 eleven    

12 twelve

 

1. Числительные от от 13 – 19 образуются при помощи  суффикса – teen: 

     14 -  fourteen 

     16 - sixteen 

     17 - seventeen 

      

2. Десятки от 20 -90 образуются при помощи  суффикса –ty: 

20 - twenty 

40 - forty 

70 - seventy 



3. Перед числительными hundred, thousand, million ставится неопределенный артикль 

а/ an или числительное one: 

а (one) hundred 

а (one) thousand 

а (one) million 

 

4. Числительные hundred, thousand и million не принимают окончания –s/ -es, когда 

перед ними стоят числительные two, three, four, etc.: 

two hundred 

five hundred 

six thousand 

seven million 

 

8. Порядковые числительные, кроме first, second, third, образуются путём 

прибавлением суффикса -th или –eth к основе соответствующего количественного 

числительного; при этом перед порядковым числительным ставится определенный 

артикль: 

The fourth 

The seventh 

 

Great Britain: political system 

Great Britain is a monarchy, but the Queen is not absolute but constitutional. Her powers 

are limited by Parliament.  

Parliament is the group of people who make the laws of their country. The British 

Parliament consists of the House of Lords and the House of Commons. The members of the 

House of Commons are elected for five years. The House of Commons consists of 650 members. 

The House of Lords has more than 1000 members. 

The largest political parties are the Conservatives, Labour and the Liberal democrats.  

Since 1973, Britain has been a member of the European Community. 

 

Урок 13. Даты. Время. Дроби. “London” 

 

Даты. Время. Дроби. 

1) Года в английском языке читаются по две цифры. 

1994 – nineteen ninety four 

1988 – nineteen eighty eight 

2000 – two thousand 

2007 – two thousand and seven 

2) Дни недели и месяцы пишутся с большой буквы. 

Monday          January          

Tuesday       February 

Wednesday       March 

Thursday       April 

Friday        May 

Saturday       June 

Sunday       July 



        August 

         September 

           October 

                             November 

                           December 

3) Для обозначения времени употребляется предолги past (после) и to (до). 

2: 00 – two o’clock 

2 : 10 – ten past two 

2 : 30 – half past two 

2:15 – quarter past two 

4:45 – quarter to five 

4: 50 – ten to five 

 

Простые и десятичные дроби  

В простых дробях числитель выражается количественным числительным, а 

знаменатель - порядковым числительным. Когда числитель больше единицы, знаменатель 

принимает окончание -s 

Простые дроби 

½ - a (one) half 

⅔ - two thirds 

¼ - a (one) quarter or 

a (one) fourth 

Десятичные дроби 

0.1 – zero point one 

2.3 – two point three 

2.35 – two point three five or 

two point thirty five 

В десятичных дробях целое число отделяется от дроби точкой, а не запятой, как в 

русском языке.  

London 

London is the capital of Great Britain. London is situated on the Thames.  

The population of London is nine million people. London is divided into 3 main parts: the 

City, the West End and the East End.  

 The City is the oldest part of London. There are many offices, companies and banks. The 

City is the financial centre of the UK. 

 The West End is the centre of London. There are a lot of rich hotels, large supermarkets 

and cinemas. There are a lot of beautiful houses and gardens. Westminster Palace is the seat of 

the British Parliament. 

 The Towers of the Houses of Parliament stand high above the city. There is the largest 

clock in the world as Big Ben. The official London residence of the Queen is Buckingham 

Palace. It was built in the 18
th

 century. Trafalgar Square is in the centre of the West End.  

There are many museums, libraries and galleries in London. The British Museum is a 

very interesting place in London.  

The East End of London is the industrial area. There are many factories, workshops and 

docks there.  

 

 



Раздел 4. Canada (12 часов) 

 

Урок 14. Предлоги места. “Canada: geographical position” 

 

Предлоги места 

По своему значению предлоги делятся на: предлоги места, времени и направления. 

Предлоги места:  

in - в (внутри чего-либо): 

Не lives in Moscow.  

Он живет в Москве. 

on - на (на поверхности предмета): 

My book is on the table.  

Моя книга на столе. 

behind - за (позади другого предмета): 

Our house is behind the forest.  

Наш дом за лесом. 

over - над: 

A lamp is over the bookshelf.  

Лампа над книжной полкой. 

under - под: 

A box is under the table.  

Ящик под столом. 

in front of - перед: 

There is a garden in front of our school.  

Перед нашей школой есть сад. 

at 1) у, около, на (указывает на нахождение предмета вблизи другого предмета); 

2) в, на (указывает на участие в каком-либо действии или процессе): 

There is a chair at the door.  

У двери стоит стул. 

Не was at the meeting. 

Он был на собрании. 

 

Canada: geographical position 

Canada is the second largest country in the world.  

Canada is situated in North America. Canada has an area of nearly ten million square 

kilometers. It is washed by the Pacific Ocean in the west and by the Atlantic Ocean in the east.  

Canada has mountains, high plains and low plains. The Rocky Mountains run parallel to 

the Pacific coast.  

Canada is a country of lakes. There are the Great Lakes, Lakes Superior, Huron, Erie and 

Ontario (the fifth Great Lake, Michigan, lies in the USA).  

Canada also has large rivers: the Mackenzie, the Yukon, the St. Lawrence River. The 

Niagara Falls is one of the most splendid sights in the world.  

         Canada has several climatic regions. Winter in Canada lasts from four to five months with 

heavy snowfalls. There is much rain in the east and west, but less in the centre. The north of the 

country near the Arctic is tundra. 



Урок 15. Предлоги времени. “Canada: political system” 

 

Предлоги времени 

Предлоги времени: 

at - в (указывает на время в часах и минутах): 

Our lessons begin at nine. 

Наши занятия начинаются в девять. 

 

in 1) в (употребляется при обозначении времени суток, месяца или года); 

2) через: 

Winter begins in December.  

Зима начинается в декабре. 

Не was born in 1946.  

Он родился в 1946 году. 

Не will come in an hour.  

Он придет через час. 

 

on - в (употребляется при обозначении дней недели, даты): 

Не will go there on Sunday.  

Он пойдет туда в воскресенье. 

The academic year begins on the first of September. 

Учебный год начинается 1-го сентября. 

 

 

Canada: political system 

 

The government type of Canada is with parliamentary democracy. 

Canada is a federation of 10 provinces and 3 territories. Canada is an independent state. 

But according to the Constitution Act of 1982 British Monarch, Queen Elizabeth II of the United 

Kingdom is recognized as Queen of Canada. Canada was ruled by Britain completely until 1867. 

Canada's people are varied. About 57% of all Canadians have some English ancestry and about 

32% have some French ancestry. There are two official languages: English and French.  .  

The population of Canada is about 32 million people. The capital of Canada is Ottawa. 

 

 

Урок 16. Предлоги направления “Ottawa- the capital of Canada” 

 

Предлоги направления 

Предлоги направления: 

to - к, в, на (указывает на движение предмета по направлению к другому предмету): 

We’ll go to the theatre.  

Мы пойдем в театр. 

 

into (in + to) - в (указывает на движение одного предмета внутрь другого): 

May I come into your room?  

Можно войти в вашу комнату? 



from - из, от, с, у (указывает на движение одного предмета от другого): 

I am going from my friend's. 

Я иду от друга. 

Take the book from the bookshelf.  

Возьмите книгу с книжной полки. 

 

out of - из (указывает на движение одного предмета изнутри другого): 

Не went out of the room.  

Он вышел из комнаты. 

through через: 

We shall better go through the forest.  

Лучше мы пойдем через лес. 

 

 

Ottawa- the capital of Canada 

 

Ottawa is the capital of Canada. It’s an administrative and a political centre. It is situated 

in the Ottawa Valley. The city lies on the southern banks of the Ottawa River.  Ottawa is now 

Canada's fourth largest city. The oldest part of the city is known as Lower Town. 

In Ottawa there are eleven historic townships. There are national museums, official 

residences, government buildings, memorials in Ottava. The National Gallery and The National 

Art Centre are very popular in the city. The guests can see Parliament Hill from most parts of the 

City. 

Ottawa has two main universities, Carleton University and the University of Ottawa. 

Ottawa has the highest concentration of engineers, scientists, and residents with PhDs in Canada. 

        The city has many sporting activities, such as skating, curling in winter, cycling and jogging 

in summer, skiing, hiking, and sailing. Ottawa has many cricket clubs for people of all ages. 

 

Урок 18. Прием внеаудиторного чтения. 

Урок 19. Повторительно-обобщающий урок. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



II семестр 

 

Раздел 5 

The United States of America (8 часов) 

 

Урок 20.  The Present Simple Tense. The USA: geographical position. 

The Present Simple Tense 

           Present Simple образуется от инфинитива без частицы «to». В 3м лице единственном 

числе к инфинитиву добавляется окончание – s/ -es. 

 

I read                                           We read 

He reads     You read 

She reads     They read 

Вопросительная форма Present Simple образуется при помощи вспомогательного 

глагола do/does, который ставится перед подлежащим. 

 

Do you speak English? 

Does he live in London? 

Отрицательная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола do/ does и 

частицы not. 

 

I don’t play the piano. 

He doesn’t read books every evening.  

Present Simple - настоящее неопределённое время, употребляется для обозначения 

обычных, регулярно повторяющихся или постоянных действий. 

В предложениях с  Present Simple часто употребляются такие обстоятельства 

времени, как 

always – всегда  

often – часто  

 seldom – редко  

usually – обычно  

never – никогда  

sometimes – иногда  

 every day - каждый день и т.д. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The USA: geographical position 

 

The USA is the fourth largest country in the world in area. Its total area is 9, 630, 000 

square km. The USA borders Canada in the north and Mexico in the south.  

 The USA is divided into three main regions: the Appalachians in the east, the plain in the 

central part, the Cordilleras in the west. There are many rivers in the USA: the Colorado, the 

Columbia. The longest river is the Mississippi.  

 The population of the USA is over 280 million people. The USA has never had an official 

language, but English is the main spoken language in the country. Spanish is the second spoken 

language in the USA. 

 The USA consists of 50 states and the District of Columbia. The national symbols of the 

USA are the American flag and the Great Seal. There are 50 stars on the American flag 

symbolizing 50 states of the USA, and 13 stripes representing 13 original states.  

 The head of the USA is the President B. Obama.  

 The capital of the USA is Washington. 

 

Урок 21. The Past Simple Tense. The USA: industry and agriculture 

The Past Simple Tense 

 

В английском языке глаголы делятся на правильные и неправильные (Regular and 

Irregular verbs).  

Правильные глаголы образуют Past Simple путем добавления окончания –ed/ -d к форме 

глагола.  

I worked   We worked 

He worked    You worked 

She worked    They worked 

It worked 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола did, 

который ставится перед подлежащим. 

Did you live in Semey last year? 

Did he live in Semey last year? 

Did they live in Semey last year? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола did и 

частицы not. 

I didn’t live in Semey last year. 

He didn’t live in Semey last year. 

They didn’t live in Semey last year. 

 

В предложениях с  Past Simple часто употребляются такие обстоятельства 

времени, как 

Yesterday – вчера 

Last week – на прошлой недели 

Last year – в прошлом году 



Last month – в прошлом месяце 

Two days ago – 2 дня назад 

In 1998 – в 1998 

 

I watched an interesting film yesterday.   

 

The USA: industry and agriculture. 

 

The USA is a highly developed industrial state. There are coal-mines in the Cordillera 

Mountains, in the Kansas City region. Iron is mined near the Great Lakes. The USA has rich oil-

fields in California, Texas and some other regions.  

The USA has a highly developed motor-car industry. The vehicles produced at such 

companies as Ford The motor-car industry is concentrated in and around Detroit. Ship-building 

is developed along the Atlantic coast and in San Francisco.  

American agriculture produces a lot of food products. Much of them are exported. Grain 

is grown in the Middle West. Fresh fruit and vegetables come from the southern regions, 

especially Florida, from C a l i f o r n i a  and south-western states.  

 

 

Урок 22. The USA: political system. The Future Simple Tense 

 

The Future Simple Tense 

Future Simple образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола shall/will и 

основной формы глагола.  

I shall read     We shall read 

He will read     You will read  

She will read     They will read 

It will read 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путем постановки вспомогательного глагола 

shall/will, который ставится перед подлежащим. 

Will you go to the cinema tomorrow? 

Will he buy a new car next year? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется путем постановки вспомогательного глагола 

shall/will и частицы not. 

I will not go to the cinema tomorrow 

They will not meet tomorrow. 

 

В предложениях с  Past Simple часто употребляются такие обстоятельства 

времени, как 

tomorrow –  завтра 

next week (month, year) –на следующей недели (в следующем месяце, году)  

 

 

 



The USA: political system 

 

The USA is a federal republic, consisting of fifty states.   

The Constitution of the USA was proclaimed in Philadelphia in 1787. The head of the 

USA is the President. The president is elected for four years. Congress consists of two houses, 

the House of Representatives and the Senate. 

Elections to the House of the Representatives take place every two years. The House has 

435 members. There are 100 senators (two from each state).  

In the USA there are two main political parties, the Democratic Party and the Republican 

Party. The Democratic Party was organized in the 1820s. The Republican Party was organized in 

the 1850s. 

The currency of the USA is US dollar. 

 

 

Урок 23. The Present Continuous Tense. Washington 

The Present Continuous Tense 

Present Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола “to be” в 

настоящем времени (am, is, are) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола. 

I am working    We are working 

You are working   You are working 

He is working 

She is working   They are working 

It is working 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём постановки вспомогательного глагола “to 

be” перед подлежащим, например: 

Am I working?   Are we working? 

Are you working?   Are you working? 

Is he working?  Are they working? 

Is she working? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: 

I am not working   We are not working 

You are not working   You are not working 

He is not working   They are not working 

She is not working 

It is not working 

 

Present Continuous употребляется для выражения действия, происходящего в данный 

момент настоящего времени. 

 

I am speaking now. – Я сейчас разговариваю. 

The boy is running. - Мальчик бежит. 

 



Washington 

 

Washington is the capital of the USA. It was named in honour of the first President of the 

USA George Washington.  It was founded in 1791. It is situated in the District of Columbia.  

 Washington is a very beautiful city. There are many parks, wide streets and beautiful 

buildings. There is Capitol Park in the centre of the city. The White House is the official 

residence of the President of the USA. It was founded in 1799.  

 There are three memorials, dedicated to the American Presidents in the USA. They are 

Washington Memorial, the Lincoln Memorial and the Jefferson Memorial. 

 The Library of Congress, the National Gallery of Art, the Capitol are also the famous 

sightseeings of Washington. 

 The Capitol is situated in the centre of Washington.  The Capitol is the highest building in 

Washington. The Capitol is the home of the Unites States Government. 

 

Раздел 6 

Australia (6 часов) 

 

Урок 24. The Past Continuous Tense. Australia: geographical position 

The Past Continuous Tense 

Past Continuous образуется при помощи глагола “to be” в прошедшем времени 

(was/ were) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола. 

I was working    We were  working 

You were working    You were working 

He was working 

She was working    They were working 

It was working 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса (первого) вспомогательного 

глагола (was/ were) перед подлежащим, например: 

Was I working?    Were we working? 

Were you working?   Were you working? 

Was he working?    Were they working? 

Was she working? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после вспомогательного глагола, например: 

I was not working    We were not working 

You were not working   You were not working 

He was not working  

She was not working   They were not working 

It was not working 

 

Past Continuous употребляется, когда точно указано время совершения действия в 

прошлом: 

I was reading a book at 5 o’clock yesterday. 



Australia: geographical position. 

 

The Commonwealth of Australia is a federal state within the Commonwealth. Its 

territories are the continent of Australia, the island of Tasmania and a number of small islands. It 

has an area of about eight mill ion square kilometers. It’s the sixth largest country and the 

smallest continent in the world. 

It’s situated between the Pacific and the Indian Ocean. Australia is the driest continent.  

The continent of Australia is mostly a great plain with mountains in the east and south-

east. There are greatest rivers, the Murray and the Darling.  

Australia has several different climatic regions, from warm to subtropical and tropical. 

There are tropical forests in the north-east. The climate in the west is very dry and more than 

half of Australia has very little rain.  

 

Урок 25. The Future Continuous Tense. Australia: political system. 

The Future Continuous Tense 

Future Continuous образуется с помощью глагола “to be” в будущем времени (will 

be) и причастия настоящего времени смыслового глагола. 

I will be working     We will be working 

He will be working    You are will be working 

She will be working    They will be working 

It will be working 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса вспомогательного глагола на 

место перед подлежащим, например: 

Will I be working?    Will we be working? 

Will he be working?    Will you be working? 

Will she be working?    Will they be working? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: 

I will not be working     We will not be working 

He will not be working    You will not be working 

She will not be working    They will not be working 

It will not be working 

 

Future Continuous употребляется, когда точно указано время совершения действия в 

будущем: 

I will be reading a book at 5 o’clock tomorrow. 

 

Australia: political system 

Australia is a constitutional monarchy, with the Queen of Great Britain at its head. It 

consists of six states and two territories. The queen is represented by the Governor General, who 

is appointed by the Australian government.  



The main legislative body in the country is Federal Parliament. It consists of the Queen, 

the Senate and the House of Representatives. The members of the Senate are elected for a six-

year term. There are ten senators from each state and two from each territory in the Senate.  

There are two major political parties in Australia: the Australian Labour party and a 

coalition of the Liberal and the Agrarian parties.  

 

Урок 26. The Present Perfect Tense. Interesting facts about Australia. 

The Present Perfect Tense. 

Present Perfect образуется с помощью глагола “to have” в настоящем времени (have/ 

has) и III формы глагола (причастие II). 

I have worked 

You have worked 

He has worked 

She has worked 

It has worked 

 

We have worked  

You have worked 

They have worked 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса (первого) вспомогательного глагола 

(have/ has) перед подлежащим, например: 

Have I worked? 

Have you worked? 

Has he worked? 

Has she worked? 

Have we worked? 

Have you worked? 

Have they worked? 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: 

I have not worked 

You have not worked 

He has not worked  

She has not worked 

It has not worked 

 

We have not worked 

You have not worked 

They have not worked 

   

The Present Perfect Tense обозначает действие, которое завершилось к настоящему 

моменту или завершено в период настоящего времени (в этом году, на этой неделе). 

We have bought a new TV set. Мы купили новый телевизор.  

The students have left the room. Студенты ушли из комнаты.  

 

 Для Present Perfect характерны наречия: 

Already – уже 

Still – всё ещё 

Yet - уже 

Ever – когда-либо 

Just – только что 

Recently- недавно 

Never - никогда 

Today - сегодня 

this week – на этой недели 



Interesting facts about Australia 

 

Australia is separated from many countries. The animals in Australia have a lot of 

original, and they are interesting, for example, dingoes (wild dogs), koala bears, kangaroos. 

There are many different types of kangaroo. The biggest are the great grey kangaroos. They are 

213 centimetres tall and can run at 56 kilometres per hour. 

The kangaroo and koala have got the pouch in which they carry their cubs. There are 

many birds in the country, too. One can see parrots and cockatoos. The emu is the most 

interesting bird in Australia. It is big and can't fly.  

The Dingo can be found in Australia, it inhabits open plains or light forests. It lives in 

holes that it digs itself or use different homes in a forest. The Dingo does not bark, it yelps and 

howls. It eats kangaroo and sheep. 

 

 

Раздел 7 

New Zealand (6 часов) 

 

Урок 27. The Past Perfect Tense. New Zealand: geographical position. 

The Past Perfect Tense. 

Past Perfect образуется с помощью глагола “to have” в  прошедшем времени  (had) и 

III формы глагола (причастие II). 

I had worked 

You had worked 

He had worked 

She had worked 

It had worked 

 

We had worked  

You had worked 

They had worked 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса (первого) вспомогательного 

глагола had перед подлежащим, например: 

Had I worked? 

Had you worked? 

Had he worked? 

Had she worked? 

 

Had we worked? 

Had you worked? 

Had they worked? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: 

I had not worked 

You had not worked 

He had not worked  

She had not worked 

It had not worked 

 

We had not worked 

You had not worked 

They had not worked 

 

 

 

 



New Zealand: geographical position. 

 

New Zealand is an independent state. It has got total area of 269,000 square kilometres. It 

is situated to south-east of Australia. Nearly 3.5 million people live in the country. The capital of 

New Zealand is Wellington. The official language is English. There are many mountains in New 

Zealand. The highest is Mount Cook (12,349 feet). 

There are many rivers and lakes in the country.' The chief rivers are the Waikato and the 

Wairu.  

New Zealand is rich in minerals. There are some main industries in the country, for 

example, iron and steel industry. The country has gas and petroleum. New Zealand has got heavy 

industry. There are many plants in the country.  

There are some big cities such as Auckland, Wellington, Christchurch, Dunedin, Nelson. 

Auckland, Dunedin, Wellington. They are the main ports of the country. 

The capital of the country is Wellington. It has been the capital since 1865. It is a  

financial centre too.  

 

Урок 28. The Future Perfect Tense. 

New Zealand: political system.The Future Perfect Tense. 

  Future Perfect образуется с помощью глагола “to have” в будущем времени  (will 

have) и III формы глагола (причастие II). 

I will have worked 

You will have worked 

He will have worked 

She will have worked 

It will have worked 

 

We will have worked  

You will have worked 

They will have worked 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса (первого) вспомогательного 

глагола will перед подлежащим, например: 

Will I have worked? 

Will  you have worked? 

Will he have worked? 

Will she have worked? 

Will we have worked? 

Will you have worked? 

Will they have worked? 

 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: 

I will not have worked 

You will not have worked  

He will not have worked  

She will not have worked 

It will not have worked 

 

We will not have worked 

You will not have worked 

They will  not  have worked 

 

The Future Perfect Tense обозначает действие, которое завершится к определенному 

моменту в будущем. 

 



by 3 o'clock 

before you come    

when he come 

  

She will have finished her composition by 4 o’clock tomorrow.      

 

 Будущее свершенное   время часто   заменяется   простым    будущим. 

Употребляется  часто с обстоятельствами "by then"- к тому времени,  "by... o'clock"- к ...  

часу,  "by the end of"- к концу: 

 

By 2 o'clock we'll have discussed all the problems. К двум часам мы уже обсудим все  

проблемы. 

 

New Zealand: political system 

 

New Zealand is independent state, but formerly it is a part of the British Empire. The 

head of the state is the Queen. New Zealand is self-governing state. The Parliament consists of 

one House only, the House of Representatives. The Prime Minister is the head of the 

government.  

The highest court in New Zealand is the Supreme Court of New Zealand, established in 

2004 following the passage of the Supreme Court Act 2003. 

 

 

Урок 29. The First Conditional Sentences.  Interesting facts about New Zealand. 

The First Conditional Sentences. 

Условные предложения 1 типа состоят из главного и придаточного. В главном 

предложении употребляется Future Simple, в придаточном предложении после союза if 

употребляется глагол в Present Simple.  Условные предложения 1 типа выражают 

реальные, осуществимые условия, обычно относящиеся к настоящему или будущему 

времени. 

 

I will go for a walk if the weather is fine. 

He’ll buy a car if he has money. 

They’ll visit us tomorrow if they have time.  

 

Interesting facts about New Zealand. 

 

One of the native animals in the country is the kiwi. Kiwi is the smallest bird. This 

interesting bird lives in the wet parts of the thick bushes. In the day time the bird does not go out. 

It comes out only at night to find food. Kiwis cannot fly. Many years ago kiwis were hunted for 

food. Now the government does not permit the hunting of kiwis.  

The kiwi is now the symbol of the New Zealand people. Small children are often called 

kiwis. 

 

 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Supreme_Court_of_New_Zealand


Раздел 8 

The Republic of Kazakhstan 

 

Урок 30. The Second Conditional Sentences. Kazakhstan: geographical position. 

The Second Conditional Sentences 

 

В условных предложениях II типа в придаточном предложении после союза if 

употребляется глагол в Past Simple, в главном предложении употребляется сочетание 

should/ would с первой основной формой глагола. Условные предложения II типа 

выражают маловероятные или нереальные условия, относящиеся к настоящему или 

будущему времени. 

 

Example: 

If I had time now, I should go to the concert, but I’m busy. 

Если бы у меня было время, я бы пошел на концерт, но я занят. 

 

 If I won a lot of money, I would buy you a car. – Если бы я выиграл много денег, я бы купил 

тебе машину. 

 

Глагол to be в придаточных предложениях употребляется в форме were во всех лицах 

единственного и множественного числа. 

 

If I were you, I should go to the doctor. -  Если бы я был на твоем месте, я бы пошел к врачу. 

 

Kazakhstan: geographical position 

 

I live in Kazakhstan. It is my native country. Kazakhstan is situated in Asia. Its total 

area is 2720000 km
2
. Kazakhstan borders China in the south-east, Russia in the north. It’s 

washed by the Caspian Sea in the west. 

In Kazakhstan there are mountains, lowlands and highlands. There are many lakes in 

Kazakhstan. The largest lakes are the Caspian and the Aral seas. The Balkhash is the third 

largest lake in Kazakhstan. The longest rivers are the Irtysh, the Ishim, the Tobol, and the Chu. 

The climate in our republic is very severe. Winters are very cold and summers are very 

hot. In winter there is much snow and in summer sandy winds flow. 

Kazakhstan is divided into 17 regions. The main towns are Astana, Almaty, Karaganda, 

Shymkent, Semey, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Zhambyl, Kostanai, Pavlodar and others. Astana is the 

capital of Kazakhstan. 

The President of our republic is N. A. Nazarbayev.  

People of more than 100 nationalities live in Kazakhstan.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Урок 31. The Third Conditional Sentences. Kazakhstan: political system. 

The Third Conditional Sentences 

Условные предложения III типа выражают условия, нереализованные в прошлом и, 

следовательно, совершенно невыполнимые. В условных предложениях III типа в 

придаточном предложении после союза if употребляется глагол в Past Perfect, в главном 

предложении употребляется сочетание should/ would have + третья основная форма 

глагола.  

 

If I had had time yesterday, I should have gone to the concert, but I was busy. 

If  I had seen you yesterday, I had told you about the meeting.   

 

Kazakhstan: political system 

 

Kazakhstan is a unitary state with a presidential form of government. President is elected 

for 7 years. The first and current President of Kazakhstan is Nursultan Nazarbayev. 

The Parliament is the supreme representative legislative body. Bicameral Parliament 

consists of the Senate (39 seats) and Majilis (77 seats). Seven senators are appointed by the 

president; other members are elected, two from each of the 14 oblasts, the capital of Astana, and 

the city of Almaty.    

The head of the executive power in Kazakhstan is the Government, and the head of the 

Government is the Prime Minister of the Republic of Kazakhstan. The judicial branch consists of 

the Supreme Court (44 members) and the Constitutional Council (7 members). 

 

 

Урок 32. The Present Passive Voice. The State Symbols of Kazakhstan. 

The Present Passive Voice. 

В английском языке существует два залога: the Active Voice (действительный 

залог) и the Passive Voice (страдательный залог). 

 Когда подлежащее является действующим лицом, мы имеем дело с 

действительным залогом, например: 

I read a newspaper every morning. 

 

Если  подлежащее не является действующим лицом, а действие направлено на 

подлежащее, то мы   

имеем дело с предложением в страдательном залоге. 

The book was written by my friend. 

 

 Страдательный залог образуется с помощью глагола “to be” в соответствующем времени 

и III формы глагола (причастие II). 

 

to be + V3 

I am invited 

You are invited 

He is invited 

She is invited 

It is invited 

 



We are invited 

You are invited 

They are invited 

 

Вопросительная форма образуется путём переноса (первого) вспомогательного глагола на 

место перед подлежащим, например: 

 

Am I invited? 

Are you invited? 

Is he invited? 

Is she invited? 

Are we invited? 

Are you invited? 

Are they invited? 

 

Отрицательная форма образуется с помощью отрицания not, которое ставится 

после первого вспомогательного глагола, например: 

 

I am not  invited 

You are not invited 

He is not invited 

She is not invited 

It is not invited 

 

We are not invited 

You are not invited 

They are not invited 

 

The State Symbols of Kazakhstan 

 

The Flag 

 

The Kazakhstanee flag has a golden sun in the middle of a blue field, a soaring eagle 

beneath it and a stripe of a traditional ornament on the left. 

The blue colour of the flag symbolizes the blue sky. The golden sun symbolizes peace 

and wealth. 

The Soaring eagle symbolizes independence of the young state and the nobility and 

generosity of Kazakh people. The flag was created by Shaken Niyazbekov. 

 

The National Badge 

In the middle of the badge we can see a shanyrak, which is the central and main part of 

the traditional Kazakh house yurta. For Kazakh people the shanyrak has always been the symbol 

of home.  

On both sides of the badge we can see two unicorns or winged horses. In the highest 

point of the badge there is a star. The star on the badge shows the deep belief of the people in the 

victory and success. 

The national badge was designed by Zhandarbec Malibekov and Shota Valikhanov. 

 

The National Anthem of Kazakhstan 

A national anthem is a solemn  song singing glory to pride, courage and valour. The 

music to our anthem was composed by Shamshi Kaldayakov. The words were written by 

Nursultan Nazarbayev and Zhumeken Nazhimedenov. 

 

 



Урок 33. Modal Verbs. Astana – the capital of Kazakhstan  

Modal Verbs. Модальные глаголы 

Модальные глаголы выражают не действия, а отношение говорящего к действиям или 

состояниям. В английском языке существуют следующие модальные глаголы: can, may, 

must и т.д.  

Глагол can (мочь, уметь) 

Present Past Future 

can could will be able to 

 Глагол can выражает физическую или умственную способность совершения 

действия. 

I can swim.  

He can dance.   

She can sing.   

 В вопросительных предложениях глагол can ставится перед подлежащим. 

Can she sing? 

Can you speak English? 

 Отрицательная форма – can’t. 

I can’t swim. 

We can’t ski. 

Глагол may(можно) 

Present Past Future 

may  might will be allowed to 

  

Глагол may имеет значение возможности совершения действия в зависимости от 

разрешения или вероятности его совершения. 

 May I come in? 

Глагол must (должен) 

Present Past Future 

must had to will have to 

  

Глагол must употребляется для выражения необходимости совершения действия, а 

также для выражения приказании или совета. 

 He must do this work. 

 

Astana – the capital of Kazakhstan 

 

Astana is the capital of Kazakhstan. First, it called Tselinograd, then Akmola and now 

Astana, cause Astana means capital in Kazakh. It is the centre of Akmola region. It was founded 

as Tselinograd in 1960s. Now Astana is a great administrative industrial and scientific center. It 

is the sit of the parliament government and the president of our country. The population of the 

city is more than 277.000 people.  

There are a lot of beautiful squares, parks, galleries, museums, theatres, cinemas in 

Astana. Astana is a very beautiful and modern city in our republic. 

 

 



Урок 34. Infinitive. My native town 

Infinitive. 

В английском языке инфинитив имеет свойства глагола и существительного. 

Инфинитив обычно употребляется с частицей to. 

Черты существительного 

1. Инфинитив может быть подлежащим в предложении: 

То speak English is not difficult. Говорить  по-английски нетрудно. 

2. Инфинитив может быть прямым дополнением: 

Our students like to read. Наши студенты любят читать. 

Черты глагола 

1. За инфинитивом может следовать прямое дополнение: 

Не likes to read English books. Он любит читать английские книги. 

2.Инфинитив может быть частью составного глагольного сказуемого: 

Не must do his homework this evening.    Он должен делать домашнее задание вечером. 

 

My native town 

 

  My native town is Semey. Semey is the second largest city of East-Kazakhstan  

region in western region. The city is situated on the both banks of Irtysh river. Its territory is 27 

500 sq.km. including rural districts. Semipalatinsk city was founded in 1718.  

Semey is one of the cultural and historic centres not only of East-Kazakstan but  

the whole Republic. There are Abai and F.M. Dostoyevsky museums, the oldest museum of 

local lore of Kazakhstan, art museum named after the Nevzorovs, a large number of libraries. 

There are two theatres - Kazakh musicical and dramatic theatre named after Abai and 

Russian dramatic theatre named after F.M. Dostoyevsky. 

Residents of Semipalatinsk city are proud of their countrymen: Abai Kunanbayev, 

Shakarim Kudayberdiyev, Magzhan Zhumabayev, Mukhtar Auezov, Kanysh Satbayev. 

 

 

Урок 35. Gerund. Holidays in Kazakhstan 

Gerund 

В английском языке есть неличная форма глагола, оканчивающаяся на -ing, 

которой нет в русском языке. Эта ing-форма называется the Gerund (герундий). Герундию 

присущи черты как глагола, так и существительного. 

Черты существительного 

1. Герундий употребляется в роли подлежащего или дополнения: 

Reading is useful. Чтение полезно. 

1 like reading. Я люблю читать. 



2. Герундий может иметь при себе определение, выраженное притяжательным 

местоимением или существительным: 

We were pleased with Alec's coming.    Мы были довольны, что пришел Алик 

(приходом Алика). 

Черты глагола 

1. Герундий определяется наречием: 

I like your speaking English so, fast.    Мне  нравится,   что вы так быстро говорите по-

английски. 

2. Герундий может иметь при себе прямое дополнение: 

She likes reading French books. Она любит читать французские книги. 

 

Holidays in Kazakhstan 

There are many holidays in our country. Every country has its own customs and 

traditions. 

    People can celebrate religious holidays: Oraza-Ait, Kurban-Ait, Christmas, Easter 

and others. 

     The state holidays of the country are the Constitution’s Day (on August, 30), the 

Independence Day (on December, 16). On the 8
th

 of March we congratulate our mothers, 

grandmothers, sisters and all the women on their holiday. The 9
th

 of May is the Victory Day. 

Our favourite holiday is New Year with New Year Tree and Father Frost. 

     The most popular holiday in our country is Nauryz, the ancient holiday of spring. Nauryz 

is celebrated in the streets and squares. There are national kazakh white houses- yurta which are 

decorated with ornaments. The main dish of the holiday is Nauryz Kozhe. It includes 7 

elements: water, meat, milk, rice, flour, salt, butter. People watch the sport game-Zharys, sing 

national songs, play the dombyra. 

    We also celebrate holidays which are very popular in many countries: St.Valentine’s 

Day, Halloween and others. I think that all people like holidays besause they don’t work and 

have a good time. They can visit their friends and relatives, invite guests and have a lot of fun. 

 

 

Урок 36. Participle I. Participle II. British and American Holidays 

Participle I. Participle II. 

Present Participle может быть образовано от любого глагола (кроме модальных и 

вспомогательных глаголов shall и will) путем прибавления окончания -ing 

standing - стоящий  

burning - горящий 

Если глагол оканчивается на непроизносимое е, то при образовании Present Participle е 

опускается: 

Smile- smiling  

write - writing 

Если глагол состоит из одного слога, то при образовании Present Participle удваивается 

конечная согласная: 



Sit-sitting  

Run- running  

Present Participle участвует в образовании времен группы Continuous в сочетании с 

личными формами вспомогательного глагола to be: 

They are drawing now. Они чертят сейчас. 

В предложении Present Participle может выступать в функции: 

1) определения к существительному: 

I like to see smiling faces. Я люблю видеть улыбающиеся лица. 

2) обособленного определения: 

The boy sitting at the table is her    Мальчик, сидящий за столом, ее брат, brother. 

   The boy who is sitting at the table is her brother. Мальчик, который сидит за столом, ее 

брат. 

3) обстоятельства: 

She went out smiling. Она вышла улыбаясь. 

 

Причастие прошедшего времени (Past Participle, или Participle I I )  

Форма Past Participle правильных глаголов образуется путем прибавления суффикса -ed 

к основной форме глагола, например: 

decide — решать decided — решенный 

 

British and American Holidays 

Every country has its own customs and traditions.  

          Christmas and Easter are the most popular in Great Britain and the USA. Christmas is  

celebrated on the 25
th

 of December. The people decorate the Christmas tree with lights, balls and 

candles. On Christmas Eve children hang their stockings on their bed and wait for presents from 

Santa Claus. Easter is a religious holiday. On this day they give each other Easter eggs. St. 

Valentine’s Day is celebrated on the 14
th

 of February. It’s the day of lovers. They send each 

other valentine cards and romantic flowers such as red roses. 

Halloween is celebrated on the 31
st
 of October. It’s a special night when people dress  

as witches and ghosts.  

      American people celebrate Thanksgiving Day on last Thursday in November. It’s  

holiday of people of other countries who came to live to an American continent many years ago. 

The traditional food on this day is turkey. 

 

 

Урок 37. Обязательная контрольная работа 

Урок 38. Прием внеаудиторного чтения 

Урок 39. Повторительно-обобщающий урок 
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